
PARKING ADVISORY COMMITTEE AGENDA
Wednesday, October 19, 2022 - 6:00 PM

City Hall, Council Chambers, 169 SW Coast Hwy, Newport , OR 97365

All public meetings of the City of Newport will be held in the City Council Chambers of the
Newport City Hall, 169 SW Coast Highway, Newport. The meeting location is accessible to
persons with disabilities. A request for an interpreter, or for other accommodations, should be
made at least 48 hours in advance of the meeting to Peggy Hawker, City Recorder at
541.574.0613, or p.hawker@newportoregon.gov.

All meetings are live-streamed at https://newportoregon.gov, and broadcast on Charter Channel
190. Anyone wishing to provide written public comment should send the comment to
publiccomment@newportoregon.gov. Public comment must be received four hours prior to a
scheduled meeting. For example, if a meeting is to be held at 3:00 P.M., the deadline to submit
written comment is 11:00 A.M. If a meeting is scheduled to occur before noon, the written
comment must be submitted by 5:00 P.M. the previous day.
To provide virtual public comment during a city meeting, a request must be made to the meeting
staff at least 24 hours prior to the start of the meeting. This provision applies only to public
comment and presenters outside the area and/or unable to physically attend an in person
meeting.

The agenda may be amended during the meeting to add or delete items, change the order of
agenda items, or discuss any other business deemed necessary at the time of the meeting.

1.  WELCOME AND INTRODUCTIONS

1.1 Memorandum.
Staff Memorandum

2.  ROLL CALL

1

https://newportoregon.gov/
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/1610355/Staff_Memo.pdf


3.  APPROVAL OF MINUTES

3.1 August 17, 2022 Parking Advisory Committee Meeting.
Draft Parking Advisory Comm Mtg Minutes 08-17-2022

4.  DISCUSSION ITEMS

4.1 Draft  RFP for Bayfront Parking Management Solut ions.

4.2 Sample Parking Permit  Fee Structures.

4.3 Priorit ies for Updat ing Special Parking Area Requirements (9/26/22 PC Work
Session Materials).

5.  PUBLIC COMMENT
This is an opportunity for members of the audience to bring to the Work Group's attention any

item not listed on the agenda. Comments will be limited to three (3) minutes per person
with a maximum of 15 minutes for all items.  Speakers may not yield their time to others.

6.  ADJOURNMENT

HANDOUTS

Meeting Materials
Draft RFP for Bayfront Parking Management Solutions
Sample Parking Permit Fee Structures
Priorities for Updating Special Parking Area Requirements (9/26/22 PC Work Session
Materials)
Minutes from the 9/26/22 Planning Commission Work Session

2

https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/1610318/Draft_Park_Advisory_Comm_Mtg_Minutes_08-17-2022.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/1610356/Newport_Bayfront_Parking_Management_Solution_RFP_10.14.22.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/1610357/Sample_Parking_Permit_Fee_Structures.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/1610359/Priorities_for_Updating_Special_Parking_Area_Requirements.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/1610359/Priorities_for_Updating_Special_Parking_Area_Requirements.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/1610360/PC_Work_Session_Minutes_09-26-22.pdf


3



Page 1    Draft Parking Advisory Committee Minutes – 08/17/2022. 
 

Draft MINUTES 

Parking Advisory Committee 

Meeting #2 

Newport City Hall Council Chambers 

August 17, 2022 

 

Committee Members Present: Aaron Bretz, Ian Clayman, Janell Goplen, Bill Branigan, Nevin Beckes, 

Aracelly Guevara, Ryan Parker, and Robert Emond. 

 

Committee Members Absent: Gary Ripka, and Doretta Smith (excused). 

 

Public Members Present: David Heater.  

 

City Staff Present: Community Development Director, Derrick Tokos; Police Chief, Jason Malloy; and 

Executive Assistant, Sherri Marineau. 

 

1. Call to Order & Roll Call.  Meeting started at 6:08 p.m.  

 

2. Approval of Minutes.  

 

MOTION was made by Branigan, seconded by Joplen, to approve the July 20, 2022 Parking Advisory 

Committee meeting minutes with minor corrections. The motion carried unanimously in a voice vote. 

 

3. Chairing the Committee.  Tokos asked for nominations for the Chair and Vice Chair for committee. 

He explained that this would be for the first year and could be changed. Tokos would coordinate with 

the Chair on agenda items and running the meetings. Goplen volunteered to do it but couldn't guarantee 

she could be at every meeting. 

 

Bill Branigan nominated Janell Goplen as the Parking Committee Chair. The nomination carried 

unanimously in a voice vote. 

 

Janell Goplen nominated Bill Branigan as the Parking Committee Vice Chair. The nomination carried 

unanimously in a voice vote. 

 

4. Ripley’s Experience with Air Garage – Dave Heater, General Manager. Goplen welcomed David 

Heater with Ripley’s Believe it or Not to speak on the Air Garage parking program they used. Heater 

reported that when they were doing their remodel they were looking into uses for their parking. It 

became clear to them that parking hardware was very expensive. They were able to find Air Garage 

that didn’t require hardware and did a percentage split with their business on parking. Heater explained 

Air Garage agreed to monitor the lot, keep track of who was parking there, and made sure people were 

paying for parking. He thought the Port was using a different company to do their parking program 

and thought they should use the same company so they could get on the same page. Heater reported 

that Air Garage had $5 million indemnity if there were any problems.  

 

Goplen asked how much Ripley’s was charging for parking. Heater reported it was $3 per hour and 

$15 maximum a day. Goplen asked if parking was being enforced. Heater explained there wasn’t too 

much enforcement. They gave a person a light warning on the first offence and gave them a ticket. 

Then on the third or fourth time they would tow them away. Heater thought it was a simple program 

and something the city should consider. Brannigan asked what the negatives to the system was. Heater 

thought that a negative was that it wasn't being monitored. If everyone had the same system and it 

would be monitored, and would be better. Parker asked if the plant workers were causing any parking 

4



Page 2    Draft Parking Advisory Committee Minutes – 08/17/2022. 
 

problems. Heater thought the workers were very respectful. Parker asked if they had a laptop to see 

who was using the parking spaces. Heater explained he was able to see how many spaces were being 

used. Parker asked if a QR code was being used. Heater explained they had signs for the parking app 

and how to use it. Goplen asked if anyone had been ticketed. Heater didn't know. He noted that they 

were able to use the system to block off the parking lot for events, and it was easy to raise the price of 

parking when they saw fit. 

 

Branigan asked who a person paid a ticket to. Heater explained they paid the Air Garage program. A 

discussion ensued regarding how the system would work if the city was using it. 

 

Guevara asked how simple the system was to use and if it could be in another language. Heater 

assumed they could do it in another language. He couldn’t say if it was simple because some technical 

things were harder for some people to use. He felt this was the future of parking instead of the upkeep 

of installing hardware. Tokos noted there had be a few people who contacted the city to pay their Air 

Garage tickets. Heater reported that they could validate parking with this program as well. Parker 

asked if the validation discounts showed up on their reports. Heater confirmed they did. Tokos asked 

if there was a way to pay the fees over the phone instead of using the phone app. Heater wasn't sure. 

Goplen asked if someone didn’t have a phone would they go to their place of business to pay for 

parking. Heater thought that if they didn’t have a phone they wouldn’t be able to park there. Clayman 

asked if people paid in advance would they get a refund for the time they didn’t use. Heater explained 

they would sign up for an Air Garage account and they would charge at the end of the stay. 

 

Beckes asked how long it took from when they signed up for Air Garage and the hardware was set up 

to start collecting parking fees. Heater reported it took about 14 days to get it up and running. Air 

Garage shipped them the signage and they hired someone to install the signs. Tokos noted that if they 

were to do a permit/meter hybrid program they would want to explore where they would be exempt. 

Heater reported they were able to give someone 90 days parking with the Air Garage program. Goplen 

knew of a different program that had those capabilities and thought it would be done under a franchise 

agreement. She thought the city would own the data and be branded. Tokos explained that some 

programs were municipality specific and they could do custom tailored products. Air Garage and other 

programs were more of a generic product that could be used in a lot of different places. Goplen thought 

it would be nice for the city to have insight and own the information.  

 

Emond asked if they numbered the lots or just had the lines for parking. Heater reported they just had 

the parking lines. Tokos asked if Air Garage saw that there were more people using the app would 

they send someone to monitor. Heater wasn’t sure but thought that it might motivate them. He reported 

they were splitting the profits 70/30 with Air Garage. Branigan asked if they signed a contract with 

them. Heater confirmed they did. Branigan asked what happened if Ripley’s didn't like the service and 

wanted to stop using them. Heater reported they had to give 14 day notice. Parker thought that 

considering the costs for physical sidewalk kiosks, this would be an alternative to having physical 

things being out in the coastal weather. Tokos pointed out that using this type of programs would allow 

funds to be allocated to other things like improving existing lots, and striping and resurfacing parking 

spots. He noted they needed to look into if the company they choose is working dynamically with the 

public sector because it was different working with them. 

 

5. Port of Newport Parking Management Strategies – Aaron Bretz, Director of Operations. Bretz 

reported the way the Port of Newport’s parking worked was different from Ripley’s. The Port was a 

municipality and operated separately from the city. Only four percent of the Port’s budget came from 

property taxes. The reason this was important was the fees they charged people were very important, 

and they needed to make sure that what they were charging were covering the operation costs. The 

Port went with a system to charge for parking in the South Beach lot only. Previously, they had been 

5



Page 3    Draft Parking Advisory Committee Minutes – 08/17/2022. 
 

managing the parking lot while collecting around $2,000 a month. They had 220 parking spaces for 

500 slips and they are trying to reduce the demand. Bretz reported the Port was using the Park Mobile 

program. People could pay for parking through an app, the QR code, text park payments, through the 

website, and through an 800 number people could call. The Port paid a transactional fee of 35 cents 

on every transaction and parking for the whole day was $5. Park Mobile  had a setup charge of around 

$3,000. They had different sign packages. The Port set up everything under their facilities code. They 

used a contracted security company to do enforcement. Anytime they did citations they had to give 

the person their due process. It took them a couple of months to get all the signs up and immediately 

they saw people starting paying. Bretz reported that during the last month they had collected $1,200 

from people paying their parking fees and they wrote warnings for those who hadn’t paid. 

 

Tokos asked what the Port’s process was to deal with people who didn't pay. Bretz explained they had 

stepped up code enforcement because regular users knew it wasn't enforced. They had a full time 

officer who wrote code violations. The person would get a ticket on the window and if they disagreed 

they could appeal the ticket. This went to the general manger to see if they would ruled if they would 

hold the violation, turn it into a warning, or dismiss it altogether. Bretz explained that the security 

contractor covered the collections for the Port. They got a percentage of these funds so they had a 

vested interest.  

 

Goplen asked how much time it took to get this up and running to train a staff member to go through 

all of the violations. Bretz said it was time consuming. Right now they got around one to two violations 

a day. Their process was rigid because it was a code. The general manager had the authority to rule on 

it. If the person disagreed with the decision they could appeal it to the Port Commission. Bretz thought 

the way people would interact with the city on parking tickets would be different. They needed to tell 

people that this was a code violation. Branigan asked how much a ticket was. Bretz reported it was 

currently $50.34 but it depended on the type of violation. The ticket for people who parked in the 

Sherriff's reserved spot was around $200. Bretz reminded that the Port’s interactions with the public 

was different that Ripley’s. 

 

Emond asked how enforcement knew if a person paid or not. Bretz explained they would have 

designated zones and they would look at a report on the list of cars in it. Having a large zone would 

make it more difficult to enforce. The Port’s enforcement officer was happy with how it was working 

though. Bretz noted they could make changes to the system. Since the first six weeks they had been 

using the system, the enforcement office had turned in around 230 to 250 warnings. They had people 

who refused to pay and the most effective way to address this was through collections. Heater agreed 

and noted it was a process for people who have been doing things a certain way to get used to the 

changes. Goplen asked if there had ever been paid parking in Newport. Tokos reported there had been 

a long time ago. Parker pointed out that people who come in form out of state already get a break on 

sales taxes and the little bit they paid for parking would greatly bolster the parking funds to do striping, 

overlays and other things they city needed. He liked the idea of limiting the capital expenditure from 

the get go by using the app based system to save Newport a lot of money.  

 

Goplen asked if the Port was only getting $1,000 in the last six weeks how were they paying their 

enforcement officer. Bretz noted the officer was already getting paid for enforcement through the 

Port’s operations. Branigan asked who did the collections. Bretz reported their security contractor did 

this. Branigan asked how they went about collecting on parking tickets. Bretz reported their security 

contractors did notifications and then they went to collections for the Port. Branigan asked if the Port 

monitored the contractors for collections. Bretz reported their finance kept a close watch on this. 

Branigan asked if the Finance monitored any of the collection calls. Bretz explained that the contractor 

did this.  

6



Page 4    Draft Parking Advisory Committee Minutes – 08/17/2022. 
 

 

Tokos asked why Park Mobile recommended the Port have a kiosk. Bretz thought this was to be able 

to help accommodate different types of users who didn’t have a mobile device to be able to pay. The 

kiosks were about $6,000 a piece, along with the utilities. They needed to be undercover and have 

security to keep people from stealing from them. Branigan asked if they thought about doing the signs 

in Spanish. Bretz reported they needed to do sign upgrades and they would probably be doing this. 

They needed better signs to say what spaces were and were not pay areas to park in. Emond asked if 

people had to do zone parking only or was if it was a mix. Bretz reported they could do a mix. Emond 

asked if they had to go on to the website and use the app to validate the parking. He also asked if the 

handicapped spaces were free. Bretz explained they had to pay for the handicapped spaces and the 

Port would have to accommodate and make parking spaces available for them. Tokos asked if Park 

Mobile played an active role in enforcement. Bretz thought they did but the Port chose not to use them. 

Emond asked if Park Mobile had a 14 days to quit clause. Bretz thought it was a year contract. There 

was a risk in starting up with them and the Port wasn’t paying them a monthly fee but the risk was 

wrapped in to how much they paid into the startup costs. Heater noted that Air Garage provided the 

signage and if they broke the contract before a certain time there would be a fee. 

 

Bretz noted there were permits annually for the commercial marina on the Bayfront. They leased a 

few lots to make them available for fishermen who had permits. This as hard to enforce. They seemed 

to get more complaints about nonenforcement than anything. The annual pass was $25 if you worked 

on a boat. This was a problem when they weren’t notified when someone was fired and didn’t have a 

commercial fisherman licenses to reference. They needed to adjust the pass so it was close to the city's 

or leave it as it was, but there would be a lot of complaints on this.  

 

Goplen asked about using the crab pot storage area for parking. Bretz reported they made more money 

to designate this space for gear storage than what they could make with parking. Tokos asked if they 

could move this to the international terminal. Bretz explained the better thing for them to do was to 

get the nine acres by the Northwest Natural LNG tank. If they developed this property they would 

have to do a traffic impact analysis and it would cost a lot. If they flattened out the lots it would be a 

realistic choice but it would then depend on what the Port was trying to get going in the area. Cargo 

was important because it would make more money for the Port and took up a lot of space. Tokos asked 

if proximity was an issue. Bretz explained it was because every time you touched something there 

were costs. The costs to move the equipment further would be more. Goplen asked if the commercial 

fishing businesses would increase in the coming years. Bretz thought it would and explained that squid 

was a higher end fishery that they were bringing in. There was room to add revenue over time. The 

future of the fisheries had to do with the ingenuity of the fisherman as much as the fish. He thought 

fishermen always adapted to the needs. 

 

Tokos asked about the relationship with the Historical Society for parking lots. Bretz noted in the next 

two years the lease would expire. It was a $1 lease. The Port was on the hook to maintain the hillside 

but they don't own the property. Tokos suspected that the Historical Society would want to engage in 

this discussion and would have their own parking zone and receive some cut of the proceeds. Bretz 

didn't know what the lease would look like after it expired. The Port would have a new administration 

building. Their storage would be to the west of it and parking would be behind the building to the east. 

There was property the city owned on submerged lands that could have structures built on it. It was 

expensive to build on this and the process to allow it was more difficult. It would have to be something 

that would be dual purpose for parking and using the waterfront. This was something they would need 

to team up with the City on. Tokos noted in a prior study they looked at putting parking on the pile 

with room for additional storefronts. Bretz thought this would be expensive. They had a greater need 

for a dredge material site. 

 

7



Page 5    Draft Parking Advisory Committee Minutes – 08/17/2022. 
 

6. Parking Demand Strategies for the Bayfront – Derrick Tokos, Community Development 

Director. Tokos went over the map that showed the Bayfront parking management alternative. He 

reviewed the slide show covering the Bayfront parking demand management strategies topics; the 

Bayfront condition of parking assets for parking lots and striped on-street spaces; the pavement 

condition assessment; and the desired maintenance schedule. Edmond asked if any lots were resistant 

or susceptible to erosion. Tokos explained all the lots were in varying stages and had underlying issues. 

Each were unique in terms of their circumstances and where they fit on the spectrum. 

 

Tokos reviewed the observed occupancy on the Bayfront, and the Bayfront turnover. He then covered 

the Bayfront parking management Goals 1 and 2. Parker noted they started a conversation at the city 

about in house paving repair. He thought this would key in when they determined what the equipment 

that the streets crew could functionally operate once training was done and equipment was purchased. 

He thought the availability to have crews do the work themselves could fast track problem areas. Bretz 

asked if the five fulltime positions had the hours to fill them. Parker explained that what he was saying 

would put an option on the table and it was a resource they should consider. With the timed permit 

and parking enforcement in place, he saw the street crews prioritizing that the parking was clearly 

marked to eliminate arguments about where the spots stop and start. Tokos suspected that early on in 

any kind of program, especially if they were doing the app base, they would have a lot of signage to 

help with this. Bretz thought that improving wayfinding was a discussion that the other parking group 

had. Tokos reported it was included and was under Goal 1, Policy 1.1 under branding. They needed to 

find out if they could put the city logo on the Park Mobile or Air Garage signage to make sure people 

knew it was a city program. Bretz asked if improving wayfinding would go through the Wayfinding 

Committee. Tokos reported there was no Wayfinding Committee. Parker reported there were different 

tiers of ODOT signage. They needed to coordinate what areas would have the different signage and 

produce them inhouse. Tokos noted the emphasis was to make it clear to people who were from out 

of the area where the parking was. He thought there would be a formal signage plan. Bretz asked who 

made the formal decision. Tokos thought the actual construction had to be authorized buy the city 

Council. They would want to make sure it was well vetted and what this group was working on.  

 

Tokos reviewed Goal 3 parking management, and permit parking proposal. Goplen asked if they had 

guidelines on who got permits. Tokos explained they weren’t going to limit this. Bretz asked what the 

motive would be behind not limiting them. There would be just as many complaints from people who 

have passes when they don't have spots. Emond reminded that this was just about the Bayfront, not 

Nye Beach. Branigan reminded that they were going to test a portion of the Bayfront to see how it 

went, then Nye Beach would review what happened. Tokos thought they may have to revisit this to 

ask if they wanted to do a hunting pass approach or limit the numbers as they got into the details 

further. Emond asked who the target audience was to buy a permit. Tokos noted it would generally be 

the frequent users of parking in the area. Bretz thought they should decide what the parking pass 

permits entailed for the Bayfront, not Nye Beach. Tokos noted Nye Beach already had parking permits 

and the city would have to distinguish between the two. 

 

Tokos reviewed the parking management alternative map of the Bayfront. He noted that 13th Street 

had unrestricted areas and received pushback on having restrictions. There would be meter only spots 

starting at the three spots next to the Coast Guard down to the angled parking spaces on Bay Street. 

The west section on Bay Blvd would have it up to Ripley’s. The Abbey Street lot was going to be a 

paid parking lot owned by the city. Branigan noted that the complicated factor was all the semis that 

came down there to load fish products that took up a lot of space. There hasn’t been a conclusion on 

restricting when they could do loading activities. Tokos reviewed the Lee Street and Canyon Way lots 

which would be permitted time parking. This was where they wanted to push some of the parking up 

to. The lots would be either a time limit or have a permit to park. Tokos reported that from the Hatfield 

pump station going east would be paid/permit. Bretz asked why they didn't do paid time there. Tokos 

8



Page 6    Draft Parking Advisory Committee Minutes – 08/17/2022. 
 

explained they had the option to adjust this. Bretz thought they should reopen the conversation on 

restricting time limits in that area. Tokos reported the east side of Bay Blvd transitioned to 

permit/timed. Based on feedback, they were looking at making the Hurbert Street parking lot a 12 hour 

time limit to account for charter boats. Parker wanted to see some of the spaces on Hurbert Street be 

potentially metered during overflow periods. Most people didn't want to walk down to the Bayfront 

from there. He thought they needed to figure out something for that lot. Goplen thought this area could 

help accommodate a trolley. 

 

Tokos reviewed the Bayfront meter management and pricing, and the meter revenues. Emond asked 

how interested the City Council was in maintaining seasonality on the meters opposed to all year 

round. Parker reported they were in favor of seasonality. It might take a couple of seasons of data to 

convince a change around. Tokos noted they could stretch the seasons to be from June through 

September. Parker thought once the findings from this group were summarized and given to the 

Council, then staff would create a resolution or an ordinance that would implement all these 

suggestions. Tokos noted if they didn't go with just a straight unrestricted with however many permits 

they wanted, they could key it off the number of spaces. He noted they would have to adjust the 

amounts. A discussion ensued regarding how fishermen parked when going to Alaska for the summers 

and the number of their permits.  

 

Guevara thought they should have permit/paid parking then say employee parking for assigned areas 

for staff to park. Heater thought there was so much turnover it was hard to manage this. Tokos noted 

this was a big part of the behavior piece to get a big chunk of the available parking supply on the 

Bayfront taken up by people that worked down there. If they got more of the people not parking in the 

prime spots it would help a lot. Bretz thought the better way to do this was to have different pricing 

for prime spots for people forcing them to make a choice. He thought they should break it up in blocks 

instead of overall permits. Tokos thought they could do zone parking permits. Parker thought lighting 

improvements could be expected as well. The city could make improvements that weren’t necessary 

prior to a permit program. Tokos noted if they could get away from the kiosks they could direct those 

funds to striping and lighting instead. Beckes asked if the Committee would have a vote or 

recommendation to say which of the parking programs they wanted to go with. Tokos confirmed this 

was what the group was working toward. Before they did this they would want to do some outreach 

for more details on Park Mobile, Air Garage, and other venders to start to reshape this and eventually 

get to a point where they were sending an RFP off to the Council. Goplen asked if the old Apollo night 

club location was a parking lot currently. Tokos reported it was not and was just flagged on the map. 

Bretz pointed out that this spot didn't make much sense for parking but once they started changing the 

parking in the area it might make more sense for a developer. 

 

Tokos noted if there was a topic the Committee wanted to discuss they should send it only to him, not 

the group, and he would put it on the agenda. 

 

7. Topics for Upcoming Meetings. No discussion was heard. 

 

8. Public Comment. None were heard. 

 

9. Adjournment. Having no further business, the meeting adjourned at 8:12 p.m. 

 

Respectfully submitted, 

 
     

Sherri Marineau 

Executive Assistant 

9



 

City of Newport Bayfront Parking Management Solution RFP   
 

 
CITY OF NEWPORT 
 

169 SW COAST HWY 
 

NEWPORT, OREGON 97365 

 
 

 
phone:  541.574.0629 

 

fax:  541.574.0644 
 

http://newportoregon.gov 
 
 
COAST GUARD CITY, USA 

 
 

mombetsu, japan, sister city 

 
 
 
 
 

CITY OF NEWPORT, OREGON 
 
 
 

REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS 
 

for 
 
 

BAYFRONT PARKING MANAGEMENT SOLUTION 
 
 
 
 
PROPOSALS DUE:  January 6, 2023 by 5:00 pm 
 
 
 
 
 
SUBMIT PROPOSAL TO: 
 
Derrick I. Tokos, AICP 
Community Development Director 
City of Newport 
169 SW Coast Highway 
Newport, Oregon 97365 
 
 

 10



 

City of Newport Bayfront Parking Management Solution RFP Page 2 of 7 
 

CITY OF NEWPORT, OREGON 
 
 
Request for Proposals 
Bayfront Parking Management Solution 
 
1. INTRODUCTION 
 
The City of Newport (“City”) desires to engage a qualified firm to implement an app based parking 
management solution in the City’s Bayfront commercial district that includes metered (“paid”) 
zones, hybrid paid/permit zones, hybrid paid/timed zones, and timed zones for on and off-street 
public parking in the area.  The approach should be generally consistent with the concept 
illustrated in Figure 4 of City Ordinance No. 2163 (enclosed) with implementation by June 1, 
2023. 
 
2. PROJECT OBJECTIVES 
 
City is looking for an integrated, turnkey solution that can be managed and operated by the City 
with vendor maintenance and support.  Services are to include a product that provides for 
phone/app based payments, revenue and data management, real-time parking availability 
information, issuance of digital parking permits, robust reporting, intuitive customer service tools, 
and software and equipment to support parking enforcement and collections. 
 

Proposals must provide for the design, integration, installation, testing, training and support 
needed to implement the solution, including the provision and placement of parking and 
wayfinding signage.  City recognizes that there may be a need for pay stations, but desires to 
minimize the number that are needed.  Proposers should identify the type and number of pay 
stations they would deploy and how the stations would be integrated with their software solution. 
 

City’s principal objective is to reduce congestion and improve the availability of parking along the 
Bayfront by influencing user parking preferences, increasing parking turnover rates, and 
improving the overall user experience.  With that in mind, the parking management solution must 
satisfy the following: 
 

a. Supports dynamic/demand based pricing adjusting rates by peak season, weekday versus 
weekend, and by time of day.  The solution must also provide a convenient interface for 
merchants to generate validation codes for customers. 

 

b. Accommodates a range of convenient, stable and secure electronic and online payment 
methods, reducing the amount of cash/coin that is potentially handled.  Functionality must 
also provide daily settlement and automated financial reconciliation options. 

 

c. Provides a customer friendly, easy-to-use system that eliminates trips to City offices or phone 
calls to City staff to address routine transactions.  This includes use of signage to provide 
clear direction to parking locations and payment options. 

 

d. Allows business owners, employees, residents, tourists and other users to easily track 
parking availability and pricing at on-street and off-street parking locations. 

 

e. Offers an easy to use data management interface that minimizes manual data entry. 
 

f. Provides on demand and structured reporting of revenues, transactions, and parking data, 
including utilization, turnover rates, and enforcement trends.  

11



 

City of Newport Bayfront Parking Management Solution RFP Page 3 of 7 
 

g. Allows for reservation of spaces for events, including the ability to prepay for parking. 
 

h. Facilitates real-time parking permit management that offers end user accounts, easy access 
to customer and vehicle permit information, back office permit issuance, and an automated 
renewal process.  The solution must accommodate tiered permit pricing and provide for 
issuance of guest passes. 

 

i. Utilizes license plate recognition technology for monitoring and enforcement of parking 
operations including digital chalking and integration with DMV and related platforms. 

 

j. Offers customer service support with easy to use help screens, online technical support, and 
telephone hotline service. 

 
Proposers will be responsible for furnishing all labor, materials, and equipment necessary to 
implement the parking management solution in line with the objectives outlined above, including 
installation of signage, striping, pay stations (if needed), and other requisite materials. 
 
3. BACKGROUND 
 
Newport’s Bayfront commercial district is a working waterfront with a mix of tourist oriented retail, 
restaurants, fish processing facilities (e.g. Pacific Seafood), and infrastructure to support the 
City’s commercial fishing fleet.  The Port of Newport is a major property owner and a boardwalk 
and fishing piers provide public access to the Yaquina Bay.  The area is terrain constrained, with 
steep slopes rising up from commercial sites situated along Bay Boulevard.  Tourist-oriented 
businesses are the predominant form of development on the upland side of the street.  On the 
opposite side, buildings and piers extend out into the Bay where there is a mix of waterfront 
industrial development, namely fish processing facilities, and tourist oriented uses.  Moorages 
for the commercial fishing fleet and Port of Newport facilities are located at the east end of district. 
 
Most of the parking along the Bayfront is publicly owned, with 575 on-street spaces along Bay 
Boulevard and its connecting streets and 178 spaces in parking lots.  Many of the spaces are 
posted with a 4-hour timed parking limit, and there are a few that are limited to 30-minutes.  There 
is no paid, public parking at this time. 
 
In 2018 the City of Newport, with assistance from Lancaster StreetLab, completed a parking 
study that inventoried and assessed the condition of public parking assets along the bayfront 
and a couple of other areas.  The study includes detailed field survey data illustrating the 
utilization and turnover rates of parking spaces during peak and off-peak periods; a list of capital 
improvements needed to maintain and improve available parking, including possible upgrades 
to transit service; and financing strategies to fund needed improvements.  Along the bayfront, 
the study showed that parking occupancies are routinely at or near 85% or “functionally full” for 
much of the year, resulting in congestion attributed to vehicles cruising for parking, illegal 
parking, and other undesirable behavior.  This led to a recommendation that steps be taken to 
manage parking demand, and a plan was developed identifying public parking that should be 
placed into metered (“paid”) zones, hybrid paid/permit zones, hybrid paid/timed zones, and timed 
zones.  The concept is illustrated with Figure 4 on the following page, and was adopted by the 
Newport City Council in March of 2020 with City Ordinance No. 2163.  A copy of the ordinance 
is an attachment to this request for proposals.  The complete parking study can be found at:   
https://www.newportoregon.gov/dept/cdd/documents/Newport_Parking_Management_Plan_Fi
nal_Report_000.pdf   

12

https://www.newportoregon.gov/dept/cdd/documents/Newport_Parking_Management_Plan_Final_Report_000.pdf
https://www.newportoregon.gov/dept/cdd/documents/Newport_Parking_Management_Plan_Final_Report_000.pdf


 

City of Newport Bayfront Parking Management Solution RFP Page 4 of 7 
 

Figure 4 
 

 

13



 

City of Newport Bayfront Parking Management Solution RFP Page 5 of 7 
 

4. FUNDING 
 
Funding to implement these parking management solutions is included in the City’s FY 22/33 
capital budget.  There are no state or federal funds associated with the project. 
 
5. PROPOSAL REQUIREMENTS 
 
Proposals should be organized in the following format: 
 
A. Cover Letter.  Provide a cover letter, signed by a duly constituted official legally authorized to 

bind the proposer to both its proposal and cost estimate.  The cover letter must include the 
name, address, and telephone number of the proposer submitting the proposal and the name, 
title, address, telephone number, and email address of the person, or persons, to contact 
whom are authorized to represent the proposer and to whom correspondence should be sent. 
 

B. Proposal Summary.  This section shall discuss the highlights, key features, and distinguishing 
points of the Proposal, including a description of how the City’s objectives will be 
accomplished as outlined in the RFP. The City is open to alternatives that a proposer believes 
will more effectively achieve its desired outcomes.  In such cases, proposer should clearly 
describe and explain the reason for the proposed modifications. 
 

C. Profile of the Proposing Firm(s) This section shall include a brief description of the Proposer's 
firm size as well as the proposed project organization structure. Include a discussion of the 
Prime Proposer firm's financial stability, capacity and resources. Include all other firms 
participating in the Proposal, with similar information about those firms. Additionally, this 
section shall include a listing of any lawsuit or litigation and the result of that action resulting 
form (a) any public project undertaken by the Proposer or by its subcontractors where 
litigation is still pending or has occurred within the last five (5) years or (b) any type of project 
where claims or settlements were paid by the consultant or its insurers within the last five (5) 
years. 
 

D. Work Plan or Proposal.  This section shall present a well-conceived service plan. Include a 
full description of major tasks and subtasks required to implement the parking management 
solution. This section of the proposal shall establish that the Proposer understands the City's 
objectives and work requirements and Proposer's ability to satisfy those objectives and 
turnkey requirements. Succinctly describe the proposed approach for addressing the 
required services and the firm's ability to meet the City's schedule, outlining the approach, 
including training and support details that would be undertaken in providing the requested 
services. 

 
E. Proposed Innovations.  The Proposer may also suggest technical or procedural innovations 

that have been used successfully on other engagements and which may provide the City with 
better service delivery.  In this section discuss any ideas, innovative approaches, or specific 
new concepts included in the Proposal that would provide benefit to the City and support its 
objectives. Proposals may include other services that are considered necessary to complete 
this project in a turnkey fashion. 

 

F. Proposal Exceptions.  This section shall discuss any exceptions or requested changes that 
Proposer has to the City's RFP conditions, insurance requirements and sample Service 
Provider Agreement, attached. If there are no exceptions noted, it is assumed the Proposer 
will accept all conditions and requirements identified in the attached draft service agreement. 
Items not excepted will not be open to later negotiation. 
 

14



 

City of Newport Bayfront Parking Management Solution RFP Page 6 of 7 
 

G. Project Timeline.  Proposed timeline for accomplishing the project, including critical paths 
and milestones, and specific consulting staff by task based on the Work Plan. 
 

H. Project Coordination and Monitoring.  Describe the process for ensuring effective 
communication between the Consultant and the City, and for monitoring progress to ensure 
compliance with approved timeline, budget, staffing and deliverables. 
 

I. Proposed Cost of Services.  Provide a budget summary broken down by task, time, 
personnel, and hourly rate, number of hours and cost for each team member including those 
employed by subcontractors. Fee information should be formatted to correspond to tasks 
identified in this RFP; however, this format may be modified to suit the consultant’s approach 
to this project. The summary shall include a budget for reimbursable expenses. The final cost 
of consulting services may be based on a negotiated detailed scope of work. The budget 
summary shall also include all required materials and other direct costs, administrative 
support, overhead and profit that will apply. 
 

J. Similar Project Experience.  Specific examples of comparable work which best demonstrate 
the qualifications and ability of the team to accomplish the overall goals of the project under 
financial and time constraints. Provide names, addresses and telephone numbers of clients 
associated with each of these projects. Through submission of a proposal, all respondents 
specifically agree to and release the City of Newport to solicit, secure and confirm information 
provided. 
 

K. Project Qualifications and Similar Experience.  This section shall include a brief description 
of the Proposer's and sub-Proposer's qualifications and previous experience on similar or 
related projects.  Include descriptions of pertinent experience with other public municipalities 
that includes a summary of the turnkey work performed, the total project cost, the percentage 
of work the firm was responsible for, and the period over which the work was completed.  
Provide names, addresses and telephone numbers of clients associated with each of these 
projects. Through submission of a proposal, all respondents specifically agree to and release 
the City of Newport to solicit, secure and confirm information provided. 
 

8. SELECTION OF PROPOSALS 
 
Proposals will be evaluated based on the following criteria: 

 

Thoroughness, quality and conciseness of submittal. 20 pts. 

Project understanding and approach for accomplishing the City’s 
objectives. 

20 pts. 

Qualifications of the project manager and project team, and proven 
ability to successfully complete projects of similar scope. 

20 pts. 

Proposed cost of services. 15 pts. 

Ability to implement the parking management solution by June 1, 
2023. 

10 pts. 

References from past and present clients. 15 pts. 

Total 
 

100 pts. 

 
 

15



 

City of Newport Bayfront Parking Management Solution RFP Page 7 of 7 
 

9. PROPOSAL SUBMITTAL INFORMATION  
 
The City will make every effort to ensure that all proposers are treated fairly and equally 
throughout the entire advertisement, review and selection process. The information provided 
herein is intended to give all parties reasonable access to the same basic information.   
 
Parties interested in submitting a proposal should contact Derrick Tokos, Newport Community 
Development Director at (541) 574-0626 or d.tokos@newportoregon.gov. to indicate their 
interest and specify the manner to receive any amendments to the RFP. 
 
Any amendments to this RFP will be in writing and will be issued to all persons or businesses 
that have indicated an interest to receive RFP amendments. No proposal will be considered if it 
is not responsive to any issued amendments. 
 
Proposals may be submitted electronically via the email address listed above, or in hard copy 
form to the attention of the Community Development Director at Newport City Hall (169 SW Coast 
Hwy, Newport, Oregon 97365). 
 
10. PROPOSAL SUBMITTAL INFORMATION  
 
November 18, 2022: Request for proposals released. 
 
December 9, 2022: Deadline for questions. 
 
December 16, 2022: Deadline for Agency to issue addenda (this will include a summarized list 
of questions and answers). 
 
January 6, 2023: Proposals due by 5pm PST. 
 
 
Proposers may be invited to present their concepts to the City. This may be in person or on a 
digital platform like ZOOM.  City anticipated making a final selection by the end of January. 
 
11. PUBLIC RECORDS DISCLOSURE 
 
Information provided to the City will become property of the City and will be subject to public 
inspection after completion of the evaluation in accordance with Oregon Public Records Law, 
ORS 192.311 et seq. If an entity responding to this RFP believes that a specific portion of its 
response constitutes a “trade secret” under Oregon Public Records Law (ORS 192.345(2)) and 
is; therefore, exempt from public disclosure, the entity must clearly identify that specific 
information as a “trade secret.” Identification of information as a “trade secret” does not 
necessarily mean that the information will be exempt from disclosure. The agency will make that 
determination based upon the nature of the information and the requirements of Oregon Public 
Record Law. 
 
12. DESIGNATED CONTACT 
 
For questions regarding this RFP please contact Derrick I. Tokos, AICP, Community 
Development Director, City of Newport, at d.tokos@newportoregon.gov or 541-574-0626. 

16

mailto:d.tokos@newportoregon.gov
mailto:d.tokos@newportoregon.gov


Hood River Example 17



18



Grants Pass Example 19



20



21



22



23



24



Bend Example 25



26



27



28



City of Newport Community Development 
Department 

Memorandum 
To: 

From: 

Date: 

Re: 

Planning Commission/Commission Advisory Committee K 
Derrick I. Tokos, AICP, Community Development Dire~tJJ J 
September 22, 2022 

Discuss Priorities for Updating Special Parking Area Requirements 

The Parking Advisory Committee meeting for September was cancelled, so I have gone ahead and 
pulled some information together to begin to frame the scope of amendments that we can vet with the 
Committee and then bring back to the Planning Commission as a draft set of amendments. 

With Ordinance No. 2163 (attached), and the adoption of the Parking Study, the City Council put in 
place a number of parking related policies and implementation measures. A couple of implementation 
measures particularly relevant to the Bayfront include: 

Implementation Measure 1.3.1: Pursue metered zones, hybrid paid/permit, and hybrid 
permit/timed zones for high demand areas along the Bayfront; and 

Implementation Measure 3.2.3: Reduce or eliminate minimum off-street par/dng requirements 
for new development or redevelopment in metered and meter/permit zones. 

Staff is working with the Parking Advisory Committee to implement the first measure, and this work 
session has been scheduled to begin to frame what needs to be done to Implement Measure 3.2.3. It is 
also an opportunity to clarify existing rules that apply to the Bayfront, City Center, and Nye Beach areas 
(collectively "Special Parking Areas"). 

The geographic boundaries of the special parking areas are described in NMC 14.14.100 and are 
generally illustrated with the map attachment to Resolution No. 3864. As noted in the resolution, these 
areas were once known as "parking districts," which were a type of economic improvement district 
authorized under ORS Chapter 223. In 2019, the Council allowed the economic improvement districts 
to sunset but kept in place a business license surcharge and a limited off-street parking exemption of up 
to five (5) off-street parking spaces that would otherwise be required of new development or 
redevelopment (ref: Section 4, Resolution No. 3864). 

We should consider amending NMC 14.14.100, to codify this limited off-street parking exemption as it 
relates to the Bayfront, City Center, and Nye Beach special parking areas. That section of Chapter 14.14 
could also be amendment to note that special parking areas are subject to other provisions ofthe chapter, 
except as modified in NMC 14.14.100 or other chapters of the zoning ordinance, such as the Nye Beach 
Design Review District. 

As for reducing or elimination off-street parking requirements for new development or redevelopment 
along the Bayfront once the meter, permit, and timed parking provisions are implemented, language 
could be added to NMC 14.14.100 that sets out the reductions in areas where parking needs are being 

29



managed in this manner. The most straightforward approach would be to eliminate off-street parking 
requirements in their entirety. Developers could still provide off-street parking if it is critical to their 
business needs or if other factors compel them to construct parking, such as lender requirements. With 
a metering and permit parking program in place, high demand users are likely locate elsewhere as they 
wouldn't have confidence that parking would be available for there use. This is the approach that is 
being encouraged and/or required in metropolitan areas with the recently adopted Climate Friendly and 
Equitable Communities Rules. Attached is background information related to the new rules. The City 
of Newport is not required to comply with the new rules since it is not within a metropolitan area. 

If off-street parking requirements are to be eliminated in areas where a meter, permit, timed parking 
arrangement has been implemented, then there are related issues in Chapter 14.14 that may need to be 
addressed. 

Accessible Parking: Requirements for ADA accessible parking are outlined in Section 1106 of the 
Oregon Structural Specialty Code (OSSC), and the Zoning Ordinance cross references to the OSSC 
since its provisions are updated more frequently (ref: NMC 14.14.050). ADA spaces are only required 
if parking is provided with a development. The City's public parking lots and on-street spaces are 
woefully inadequate as it relates to accommodating ADA needs, and consideration should be given to 
requiring new development accommodate ADA needs by improving public spaces along their frontage 
(in cases where parking is not being provided). Per the OSSC, one van accessible space is required for 
every 25 parking spaces. This might be a reasonable target in terms of increasing the number of spaces 
within affected rights-of-way, like Bay Blvd. 

Electric Vehicle Charging Requirements: The Oregon Building Codes Division recently adopted 
administrative rules implementing HB 2180 (2021) related to electric vehicle parking infrastructure 
(enclosed). Like the OSSC, the rules key off of new development or redevelopment that provide 
parking. The standards require the installation of electric vehicle infrastructure in the building and a 
percentage of the parking spaces. It might be most effective for the City to address electric vehicle 
charging needs programmatically in areas such as the Bayfront, as opposed to asking a developer to 
install a charger(s) for public use in parking stalls abutting their property. 

Loading and Unloading Areas: Loading areas can be quite large and iflocated in the right-of-way could 
necessitate the removal of a significant amount of parking. Consideration should be given to retaining 
this requirement in areas where new development or redevelopment is not required to provided off-street 
parking. The need for loading and unloading areas is keyed off of the square footage of a particular 
facility (ref: NMC 14.14.11 0-A). 

Bicycle Parking: Bicycle parking is required for retail uses and is keyed off of the number of required 
parking spaces (NMC 14.14.070). Consideration should be given to retaining bicycle parking if new 
development or redevelopment is exempt from off-street vehicle parking standards. This would be 
consistent with the policy objective of promoting multiple transportation modes in high traffic areas. 
Given space constraints, it might be appropriate to look at alternatives to the existing bicycle parking 
space requirements, such as wall mounted solutions. This is something the Bicycle and Pedestrian 
Committee could look into and provide recommendations. 

I look forward to our discussion on Monday! 

Attachments 
Ordinance No. 2163 
NMC Chapter 14.14 
Resolution No. 3864 
Oregon BCD HB 2180 Rules 
Informational Materials on DLCD's Climate Friendly and Equitable Communities Rules (Not applicable to Newport)) 

Page2 of2 30



31



32



33



34



35



36



37



38



39



40



41



60

48

52

25

51

32

36

50

21

31

28

15

22

7

12

8

11

6

5

4

10

9

3

2

2

11

3

11

15

21

5

12

2

3

28

12

2
2

5533

22

19

14

127

7

5

¯
0

30
0

60
0

90
0

15
0

Fe
et

Th
is

 m
ap

 is
 fo

r i
nf

or
m

at
io

na
l u

se
 o

nl
y 

an
d 

ha
s 

no
t b

ee
n 

pr
ep

ar
ed

 fo
r, 

no
r i

s 
it 

su
ita

bl
e 

fo
r l

eg
al

, e
ng

in
ee

rin
g,

 o
r s

ur
ve

yi
ng

 p
ur

po
se

s.
 It

in
cl

ud
es

 d
at

a 
fro

m
 m

ul
tip

le
 s

ou
rc

es
. T

he
 C

ity
 o

f N
ew

po
rt 

as
su

m
es

 n
o 

re
sp

on
si

bi
lit

y 
fo

r i
ts

 c
om

pi
la

tio
n 

or
 u

se
 a

nd
 u

se
rs

 o
f t

hi
s

in
fo

rm
at

io
n 

ar
e 

ca
ut

io
ne

d 
to

 v
er

ify
 a

ll 
in

fo
rm

at
io

n 
w

ith
 th

e 
C

ity
 o

f N
ew

po
rt 

C
om

m
un

ity
 D

ev
el

op
m

en
t D

ep
ar

tm
en

t.

C
it

y 
o

f 
N

e
w

p
o

rt
C

o
m

m
u

n
it

y 
D

ev
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

D
e

p
a

rt
m

e
n

t
16

9
 S

W
 C

o
a

st
 H

ig
h

w
ay

   
   

   
   

  P
h

o
n

e
:1

.5
4

1
.5

7
4

.0
6

2
9

N
e

w
p

o
rt

, 
O

R
 9

7
3

6
5

   
   

   
   

   
   

  F
a

x:
1.

5
4

1
.5

7
4

.0
6

4
4

Le
ge

nd
O

n-
St

re
et

 S
pa

ce
s

P
ai

d 
/ P

er
m

it

P
ai

d 
O

nl
y

P
er

m
it 

/ T
im

ed

Ti
m

ed
 (1

2-
hr

)

U
nr

es
tri

ct
ed

Pu
bl

ic
 P

ar
ki

ng
 L

ot
s

P
ai

d 
/ P

er
m

it

P
er

m
it 

/ T
im

ed

Ti
m

ed
 (1

2-
hr

)

U
nr

es
tri

ct
ed

Fi
gu

re
 4

: B
ay

 F
ro

nt
 P

ar
ki

ng
 M

an
ag

em
en

t A
lte

rn
at

iv
e

Im
ag

e 
Ta

ke
n 

Ju
ly

 2
01

8
4-

in
ch

, 4
-b

an
d 

D
ig

ita
l O

rt
ho

ph
ot

os
Q

ua
nt

um
 S

pa
tia

l, 
In

c.
 C

or
va

lli
s,

 O
R

 

42



151

48

23

27

7

16

14 17

21
24

1822

20
8

12

9

6

11

10

5

4

13

2

3

1

3
2

6

16

7

8

4
17

9

20

4

5

7

24
4

4

4

17

7

20

4

2

4

2

3

20

1

17

2
3

7

10

16

2

10

10

3

12

6

8

7

7

7

4

7

20

7

5

4

6

10

2
17

21

8

9

5 10

4

2020

5

8

6 4

16

4

3

¯0 200 400100
FeetThis map is for informational use only and has not been prepared for, nor is it suitable for legal, engineering, or surveying purposes. It

includes data from multiple sources. The City of Newport assumes no responsibility for its compilation or use and users of this
information are cautioned to verify all information with the City of Newport Community Development Department.

City of  Newport
Community Development Department
169 SW Coast Highway              Phone:1.541.574.0629
Newport, OR 97365                    Fax:1.541.574.0644

Figure 5: Nye Beach Parking Management (Alternative)
Image Taken July 2018

4-inch, 4-band Digital Orthophotos
Quantum Spatial, Inc. Corvallis, OR 

Legend
On-Street Spaces

Paid Only

Paid / Permit

Permit / Timed

Unrestricted

Public Parking Lots
Paid

Permit / Timed

Unrestricted

43



44



45



46



47



48



49



CHAPTER 14.14 PARKING AND LOADING REQUIREMENTS 
 

14.14.010 Purpose 
 

The purpose of this section is to establish off-street parking 
and loading requirements, access standards, development 
standards for off-street parking lots, and to formulate special 
parking areas for specific areas of the City of Newport. It is 
also the purpose of this section to implement the 
Comprehensive Plan, enhance property values, and preserve 
the health, safety, and welfare of citizens of the City of 
Newport. 
 

14.14.020 Definitions 
 

For purposes of this section, the following definitions shall 
apply: 
 
Access. The point of ingress and egress from a public street 
to an off-street parking lot or loading and unloading area. 
 
Aisle. Lanes providing access to a parking space. 
 
Gross Floor Area. The total area of a building measured by 
taking the outside dimensions of the building at each floor 
level intended for occupancy or storage. 
 
Loading Space. A parking space for the loading and unloading 
of vehicles over 30 feet in length. 
 
Parking Space. An area for the parking of a vehicle. 
 
Site Plan. A map showing the layout of the building, parking, 
landscaping, setbacks, and any other pertinent information 
concerning the development of a site. 
 
Use. Any new building, change of occupancy, or addition to 
an existing building. 
 

14.14.030 Number of Parking Spaces Required 
 

A. Off-street parking shall be provided and maintained as set 
forth in this section. Such off-street parking spaces shall 
be provided prior to issuance of a final building inspection, 
certificate of occupancy for a building, or occupancy, 
whichever occurs first. For any expansion, reconstruction, 

50



or change of use, the entire development shall satisfy the 
requirements of Section 14.14.050, Accessible Parking. 
Otherwise, for building expansions the additional required 
parking and access improvements shall be based on the 
expansion only and for reconstruction or change of type of 
use, credit shall be given to the old use so that the required 
parking shall be based on the increase of the new use. Any 
use requiring any fraction of a space shall provide the 
entire space. In the case of mixed uses such as a 
restaurant or gift shop in a hotel, the total requirement shall 
be the sum of the requirements for the uses computed 
separately. Required parking shall be available for the 
parking of operable automobiles of residents, customers, 
or employees, and shall not be used for the storage of 
vehicles or materials or for the sale of merchandise. A site 
plan, drawn to scale, shall accompany a request for a land 
use or building permit. Such plan shall demonstrate how 
the parking requirements required by this section are met. 

 
Parking shall be required at the following rate. All 
calculations shall be based on gross floor area unless 
otherwise stated. 
 
(*Section previously amended by Ordinance No. 1332 (5-23-83), Ordinance 
No.1447 (12-16-85), Ordinance No. 1462 (5-3-86), Ordinance No. 1548 (8-21-
89), Ordinance No. 1638 (7-20-92), and Ordinance No. 1622 (10-7-91); 
section amended in its entirety by Ordinance No. 1780 (11-17-97); and 
amended in its entirety by Ordinance No. 2010 (1-6-2011).) 

 
 

1. General Office 1 space/600 sf 
2. Post Office 1 space/250 sf 
3. General Retail (e.g. shopping centers, apparel stores, 

discount stores, grocery stores, video arcade, etc.) 
1 space/300 sf 

4. Bulk Retail (e.g. hardware, garden center, car sales, tire 
stores, wholesale market, furniture stores, etc.) 

1 space/600 sf 

5. Building Materials and Lumber Store 1 space/1,000 sf 
6. Nursery – Wholesale 

Building 
1 space/2,000 sf 
1 space/1,000 sf 

7. Eating and Drinking Establishments 1 space/150 sf 
8. Service Station 1 space/pump 

 
 

9. Service Station with Convenience Store 1 space/pump + 1 space/ 200 sf of store 
space 

10. Car Wash 1 space/washing module + 2 spaces 
11. Bank 1 space/300 sf 

51



12. Waterport/Marine Terminal 20 spaces/berth 
13. General Aviation Airport 1 space/hangar + 1 space/300 sf of 

terminal 
14. Truck Terminal 1 space/berth 
15. Industrial 1.5 spaces 
16. Industrial Park 1.5 spaces/5,000 sf 
17. Warehouse 1 space/2,000 sf 
18. Mini-Warehouse 1 space/10 storage units 
19. Single-Family Detached Residence 2 spaces/dwelling 
20. Duplex 1 space/dwelling 
21. Apartment  1 space/unit for first four units + 1.5 

spaces/unit for each Additional unit 
22. Condominium (Residential) 1.5 spaces/unit 
23. Townhouse 1.5 spaces/unit 
24. Cottage Cluster 1 space/unit 
25. Elderly Housing Project 0.8 space/unit if over 16 dwelling units 
26. Congregate Care/Nursing Home 1 space/1,000 sq. ft. 
27. 
 

Hotel/Motel 
 

1 space/room + 
1 space for the manager (if the 
hotel/motel contains other uses, the other 
uses 
Shall be calculated separately 

28. Park 2 spaces/acre 
29. Athletic Field 20 spaces/acre 
30. Recreational Vehicle Park 1 space/RV space +  

1 space/10 RV spaces 
31. Marina 1 space/5 slips or berths 
32. Golf Course 4 spaces/hole 
33. Theater 1 space/4 seats 
34. Bowling alley 4 spaces/alley 
35. Elementary/Middle School 1.6 spaces/classroom 
36. High School 4.5 spaces/classroom 
37. Community College 10 spaces/classroom 
38. Religious/Fraternal Organization 1 space/4 seats in the main auditorium 
39. Day Care Facility 1 space/4 persons of license occupancy 
40. Hospital 1 space/bed 
41. Assembly Occupancy 1 space/8 occupants 

(based on 1 occupant/15 sf of 
exposition/meeting/assembly room 
conference use not elsewhere specified 

(Section 14.14.030 was amended by Ordinance No. 2182, adopted on May 17, 
2021; effective on June 16, 2021.) 
 
 

52



14.14.040 Parking Requirements for Uses Not Specified 
 

The parking space requirements of buildings and uses not set 
forth above shall be determined by the Planning Director or 
designate. Such determination shall be based upon 
requirements for the most comparable building or use 
specified in Section 14.14.030 or a separate parking demand 
analysis prepared by the applicant and subject to a Type I 
decision making procedure as provided in Section 14.52, 
Procedural Requirements. 
 

14.14.050 Accessible and Electric Vehicle Parking 
 

Parking areas shall meet all applicable accessible parking and 
electric vehicle charging infrastructure requirements of the 
Oregon Structural Specialty Code to ensure adequate access 
for disabled persons, and sufficient electric vehicle parking 
infrastructure for future users.  
 
(Amended by the adoption of Ordinance No. 2199 on August 15, 2022; effective 
September 14, 2022.) 
 

14.14.060 Compact Spaces 
 

For parking lots of five vehicles or more, 40% of the spaces 
may be compact spaces measuring 7.5 feet wide by 15 feet 
long. Each compact space must be marked with the word 
"Compact" in letters that are at least six inches high. 
 
(Amended by the adoption of Ordinance No. 2199 on August 15, 2022; effective 
September 14, 2022.) 
 

14.14.070 Bicycle Parking 
 

Bicycle parking facilities shall be provided as part of new multi-
family residential developments of five units or more; new 
retail, office, and institutional developments; and park-and-
ride lots and transit transfer stations. 
 
A. The required minimum number of bicycle parking spaces 

is as follows, rounding up to the nearest whole number: 
 

Parking Spaces Required Bike Spaces Required 

1 to 4 a 1 
5 to 25 1 
26 to 50 2 
51 to 100 3 
Over 100 1/25 

a.  Residential developments less than 5 units are exempt from bicycle parking 
requirements. 

53



 

B. Bicycle parking for multiple uses (such as commercial 
shopping centers) may be clustered in one or several 
locations but must meet all other requirements for bicycle 
parking. 

 
C. Each required bicycle parking space shall be at least two 

and a half by six feet. An access aisle at least five feet wide 
shall be provided and maintained beside or between each 
row of bicycle parking. 

 
D. Bicycle parking facilities shall offer security in the form of 

either a lockable enclosure in which the bicycle can be 
stored or a stationary object (e.g., a "rack") upon which a 
bicycle can be locked. 

 
E. Areas set aside for required bicycle parking must be 

clearly marked and reserved for bicycle parking only. 
 
(Amended by the adoption of Ordinance No. 2199 on August 15, 2022; effective 
September 14, 2022.) 
 

14.14.080 Shared Parking 
 

The off-street parking requirements of two or more uses, 
structures, or parcels may be satisfied by the same parking lot 
or loading spaces used jointly to the extent that it can be 
shown by the owners or operators of the uses, structures, or 
parcels that their parking needs do not overlap. If the uses, 
structures, or parcels are under separate ownership, the right 
to joint use of the parking space must be evidenced by a deed, 
lease, contract, or other appropriate written document to 
establish the joint use.  
 

14.14.090 Parking Lot Standards 
 

Parking lots shall comply with the following: 
 

A. Parking Lot Minimum Standards. Parking lots shall be 
designed pursuant to the minimum dimensions provided in 
Table 14.14.090-A and Figure 14.14.090-A. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

54



Table 14.14.090-A. Parking Lot Minimum Dimensions for Standard Space 

 

 

Figure 14.14.090-A. Parking Lot Minimum Dimensions 
 

 
B. Surfacing. 
 

1. All parking lots that are required to have more than five 
parking spaces shall be graded and surfaced with 
asphalt or concrete. Other material that will provide 
equivalent protection against potholes, erosion, and 

55



dust may be approved by the City Engineer if an 
equivalent level of stability is achieved. 

 
2. Parking lots having less than five parking spaces are 

not required to have the type of surface material 
specified in subsection (1), above. However, such 
parking lot shall be graded and surfaced with crushed 
rock, gravel, or other suitable material as approved by 
the City Engineer. The perimeter of such parking lot 
shall be defined by brick, stones, railroad ties, or other 
such similar devices. Whenever such a parking lot 
abuts a paved street, the driveway leading from such 
street to the parking lot shall be paved with concrete 
from the street to the property line of the parking lot. 

 
3. Parking spaces in areas surfaced in accordance with 

subsection (1) shall be appropriately demarcated with 
painted lines or other markings. 

 
C. Joint Use of Required Parking Spaces. One parking lot 

may contain required spaces for several different uses, but 
the required spaces assigned to one use may not be 
credited to any other use. 

 
D. Satellite Parking. 
 

1. If the number of off-street parking spaces required by 
this chapter cannot be provided on the same lot where 
the principal use is located, then spaces may be 
provided on adjacent or nearby lots in accordance with 
the provisions of this section. These off-site spaces are 
referred to as satellite parking spaces. 

 
2. All such satellite parking spaces shall be located within 

200 feet of the principal building or lot associated with 
such parking. 

 
3. The applicant wishing to take advantage of the 

provisions of this section must present satisfactory 
written evidence that the permission of the owner or 
other person in charge of the satellite parking spaces 
to use such spaces has been obtained. The applicant 
must also sign an acknowledgement that the 
continuing validity of the use depends upon the 
continued ability to provide the requisite number of 
parking spaces. 

 

56



4. Satellite parking spaces allowed in accordance with 
this subsection shall meet all the requirements 
contained in this section. 

 
E. Lighting. Lighting from parking lots shall be so designed 

and located as to not glare onto neighboring residential 
properties. Such lighting shall be screened, shaded, or 
designed in such a way as to comply with the requirement 
contained in this section. This section is not intended to 
apply to public street lighting or to outdoor recreational 
uses such as ball fields, playing fields, and tennis courts. 

 
F. Drive-Up/Drive-In/Drive-

Through Uses and 
Facilities. Drive-up or drive-
through uses and facilities 
shall conform to the 
following standards, which 
are intended to calm traffic, 
and protect pedestrian 
comfort and safety (Figures 
1 and 2).  

 
 

1. The drive-up/drive 
 through facility shall orient to an alley, driveway, 
 or interior parking area, and not a street; and 

 
2. None of the drive-up, 

drive-in or drive-through 
facilities (e.g., driveway 
queuing areas, windows, 
teller machines, service 
windows, kiosks, drop-
boxes, or similar facilities) 
are located within 20 feet 
of a street and shall not be 
oriented to a street corner. 
(Walk-up only teller 
machines and kiosks may 
be oriented to a street or placed adjacent to a street 
corner); and 

 
3. Drive-up/in queuing areas shall be designed so that 

vehicles do not obstruct a driveway, fire access lane, 
walkway, or public right-of-way. 

 

Figure 2 – Drive-up and Drive-Through Facilities 

 

 

 Figure 1 – Drive-Up and Drive-Through Facilities 

 

57



G. Driveway Standards. Driveways shall conform to the 
requirements of Chapter 14.46. 

 
H. Landscaping and Screening. Parking lot landscaping and 

screening standards must comply with Section 14.19.050. 
 
I. Preferential Carpool/Vanpool Parking. Parking areas that 

have designated employee parking and more than 20 
vehicle parking spaces shall provide at least 10% of the 
employee parking spaces, as preferential carpool and 
vanpool parking spaces. Preferential carpool and vanpool 
parking spaces shall be closer to the employee entrance 
of the building than other parking spaces, with the 
exception of ADA accessible parking spaces. 

 
(Sections G., H., and I. added by the adoption of Ordinance No. 2199 on August 
15, 2022; effective on September 14, 2022.) 
 

14.14.100 Special Area Parking Requirements 
 

These special areas are defined as follows: 
 
A. Nye Beach. That area bounded by SW 2nd Street, NW 

12th Street, NW and SW Hurbert Street, and the Pacific 
Ocean. 

 
B. Bayfront. That area bounded by Yaquina Bay and the 

following streets: SE Moore Drive, SE 5th and SE 13th, 
SW 13th Street, SW Canyon Way, SW 10th, SW Alder, SW 
12th, SW Fall, SW 13th, and SW Bay. 

 
C. City Center. That area bounded by SW Fall Street, SW 7th 

Street, SW Neff Street, SW Alder Street, SW 2nd Street, 
SW Nye Street, Olive Street, SE Benton Street, SW 10th 
Street, SW Angle Street, SW 11th Street, SW Hurbert 
Street, and SW 10th Street. 

 
 Uses within a special area are not required to provide the 

parking required in this section if a parking district 
authorized by the City Council is formed in all or part of the 
special area.  In such circumstances, off-street parking 
shall be provided as specified by the parking district. 

 
(Section 14.14.100 adopted by Ordinance No. 2081, adopted on May 18, 2015: 

effective June 18, 2015.) 
 
 

58



14.14.110 Loading and Unloading Areas 
 

Off-street loading and unloading areas shall be provided per 
this section. 
 
A. Whenever the normal operation of any use requires that 

goods, merchandise, or equipment be routinely delivered 
to or shipped from that use, a sufficient off-street loading 
and unloading area must be provided in accordance with 
this subsection to accommodate the delivery or shipment 
operations in a safe and convenient manner. 

 
B. The loading and unloading area must accommodate the 

numbers as set forth in Table A. At a minimum, a loading 
and unloading space must be 35 feet in length, 10 feet in 
width, and 14 feet in height. The following table indicates 
the number of spaces that, presumptively, satisfy the 
standard set forth in this subsection. 

 
Table 14.14.110-A, Required Loading Spaces 
 
Square footage of Building Number of Loading Spaces 
0-19,999 0 
20,000 – 79,999 1 
80,000 – 119,999 2 
120,000+ 3 

 
C. Loading and unloading areas shall be located and 

designed so that vehicles intending to use them can 
maneuver safely and conveniently to and from a public 
right-of-way or any parking space or parking lot aisle. No 
space for loading shall be so located that a vehicle using 
such loading space projects into any public right-of-way. 

 
D. No area allocated to loading and unloading facilities may 

be used to satisfy the area requirements for off-street 
parking, nor shall any portion of any off-street parking area 
be used to satisfy the area requirements for loading and 
unloading facilities. 

 
E. Whenever a change of use occurs after January 1, 1995, 

that does not involve any enlargement of a structure, and 
the loading area requirements of this section cannot be 
satisfied because there is insufficient area available on the 
lot that can practicably be used for loading and unloading, 
then the Planning Commission may waive the 
requirements of this section. 

59



 
F. Whenever a loading and unloading facility is located 

adjacent to a residential zone, the loading and unloading 
facility shall be screened per unloading facility shall be 
screened per Section 14.18. 

 
14.14.120 Variances 
 

Variances to this section may be approved in accordance with 
provisions of Section 14.33, Adjustments and Variances, and 
a Type III Land Use Action decision process consistent with 
Section 14.52, Procedural Requirements.* 

 
 

60



61



62



VISTA

EA
DS

BAYLEY

2ND

CAPE

COASTWOODS

MA
RT

IN

MINNIE

CASE
ABBEY

LA
UR

EL

HI
GH

AL
PIN

E

FALL

DO
UG

LA
S

PENTER

BEACH

BE
NT

ON

CO
OS

AV
ER

Y

DO
LP

HI
N

CL
IFF

PINE

EUILO

GR
AN

T

WADE

3RD

GR
OV

E

ALDER

ANGLE

LEEHURBERT

PARK

FO
GA

RT
Y

SURF

GOVERNMENT

7TH

MO
OR

E

13
TH

BAY

LIN
CO

LN

BA
Y

VIE
W

8T
H

CR
ES

CE
NT

SHERMER

6TH

SPRUCE

1ST

11T
H

CO
TT

AG
E

MA
RK

OLIVE

10TH

RIO VISTA

9TH

SMITH

4TH

5TH

12
TH

VIEW

NY
E

NATERLIN

HARBOR
CRESCENT

LARCH

NE
FF

HARBOR

YAQUINA HEIGHTS

BR
OO

K

HA
RN

EY

HIGHWAY 20

EL
IZA

BE
TH

CA
NY

ON

SCENIC

HATFIELD

Exhibit A, Resolution No. _____
Parking Districts Subject to Business License Surcharge

This map is for informational use only and has not been prepared for, nor is it suitable for legal, engineering, or surveying purposes. It
includes data from multiple sources. The City of Newport assumes no responsibility for its compilation or use and users of this
information are cautioned to verify all information with the City of Newport Community Development Department.

City of  Newport
Community Development Department
169 SW Coast Highway              Phone:1.541.574.0629
Newport, OR 97365                    Fax:1.541.574.0644 ¯

0 600 1,200300
Feet Date: 5/31/19

Bay Front Parking District Boundary (Ord. 2020) City Center Parking District Boundary (Ord. 2009) Nye Beach Parking District Boundary (Ord. 1993)

63

d.tokos
Typewritten Text
3864



 
Building Codes Division ⧫ Department of Consumer and Business Services ⧫ State of Oregon 

1535 Edgewater St. NW, Salem, OR 97304 ⧫ P.O. Box 14470, Salem, OR 97309-0404 

503-378-4133 ⧫ Fax: 503-378-2322 ⧫ oregon.gov/bcd 

Purpose of the rule: 

These rule changes implement electric vehicle (EV) parking infrastructure requirements under 

HB 2180 (2021) and ORS 455.417. The rules establish standards for what constitutes electric vehicle 

infrastructure, which newly constructed building types, and their associated parking, have to comply 

with the requirements, and sets a minimum percentage of parking spaces that must have EV parking 

infrastructure installed at time of construction. The rules also create a local land use path to require a 

higher percentage of parking spaces that are required to have EV parking infrastructure. Additional 

now obsolete rules and references are also repealed or modified to align with the requirements of HB 

2180. 

Citation: 

Adopts: OAR 918-460-0200 

Amends: OAR 918-305-0030 

Repeals: OAR 918-020-0380 

This rule is effective July 1, 2022. 

Background: 

During the 2021 session the legislature passed HB 2180 which created requirements for certain 

newly constructed buildings to provide the necessary infrastructure, consisting of service capacity or 

space to provide additional future service capacity as well as installed conduit, for the future 

installation of level 2 electric vehicle chargers at 20 percent of the building’s associated parking 

spaces. The bill created a specific definition for electric vehicle charging infrastructure to be used as 

well as identifying the types of construction covered. The bill also specified that a local jurisdiction 

may increase the required number of spaces through a local land use process outside the scope of the 

building code. The division held a Rule Advisory Committee on April 19, 2022. The Building Codes 

Structures Board reviewed and approved draft rules at its May 4, 2022, meeting. The Electrical and 

Elevator Board reviewed draft rules at its May 26, 2022, meeting. The division filed a notice of 

rulemaking on May 12, 2022, and held a public hearing on June 22, 2022. 

Summary: 

These rules implement HB 2180 (2021) and create standards for buildings that must provide EV 

parking infrastructure at the time of construction and modify existing rules to align with the 

requirements of HB 2180. 

Contact: 

If you have questions or need further information, contact Tony Rocco, structural program chief at, 

503-910-1678 or at Anthony.J.Rocco@dcbs.oregon.gov. 

 

 

Notice of Permanent Rule 
Filed June 30, 2022 

HB 2180 (2021) EV Parking Infrastructure 
Implementation 

64

http://bcd.oregon.gov/
mailto:Anthony.J.Rocco@dcbs.oregon.gov


OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY OF STATE 

SHEMIA FAGAN 

SECRETARY OF STATE

CHERYL MYERS 

DEPUTY SECRETARY OF STATE

ARCHIVES DIVISION 

STEPHANIE CLARK 

DIRECTOR

800 SUMMER STREET NE 

SALEM, OR 97310 

503-373-0701

PERMANENT ADMINISTRATIVE ORDER

BCD 6-2022
CHAPTER 918

DEPARTMENT OF CONSUMER AND BUSINESS SERVICES

FILED
06/30/2022 4:16 PM
ARCHIVES DIVISION

SECRETARY OF STATE
& LEGISLATIVE COUNSEL

BUILDING CODES DIVISION

FILING CAPTION: Implementation of HB 2180 (2120) EV Parking Infrastructure Requirements

EFFECTIVE DATE:  07/01/2022

AGENCY APPROVED DATE:  06/30/2022

CONTACT: Andy Boulton 

971-375-7027 

andrew.boulton@dcbs.oregon.gov

1535 Edgewater St NW 

PO Box 14470, Salem, OR 97309 

Salem,OR 97304

Filed By: 

Laura Burns 

Rules Coordinator

RULES: 

918-020-0380, 918-305-0030, 918-460-0200

REPEAL: 918-020-0380

NOTICE FILED DATE: 05/12/2022

RULE SUMMARY: Repeals prior pilot program on EV parking infrastructure requirements. This program is now 

outdated and superseded by HB 2180 (2021) and the adoption of 918-460-0200.

CHANGES TO RULE: 

918-020-0380 
Electric Vehicle Ready Parking  
(1) Effective October 1, 2017, there is established in Oregon a program for providing electric vehicle charging 
station infrastructure to the new construction of a parking facility. This program establishes mandatory code 
requirements for building owners or contractors as specified in this rule. Municipalities participating in this 
program must enforce the requirements of this rule.¶ 
(2) As used in this rule:¶ 
(a) "Parking facility" means a property or part of a property for which the major occupancy or use is parking spaces 
for motor vehicles.¶ 
(b) "Open parking space" means a defined area that has two or more indicated marked edges and is designed for 
the parking of a single motor vehicle including spaces designated for accessible parking.¶ 
(c) "New construction" means the construction of entirely new structures on a site. Additions are not considered 
new construction.¶ 
(3) Nothing in this rule requires the installation of electric vehicle charging stations in a parking facility.¶ 
(4) The program is mandatory within the jurisdictional boundaries of:¶ 
(a) The cities of Portland, Eugene, Salem and Gresham; and¶ 
(b) A municipality that has adopted the program through the local amendment process under OAR 918-020-
0370.¶ 
(5) The division will maintain and make available a list of all participating jurisdictions.¶ 
(6) The program applies to the new construction of parking facilities with 50 or more open parking spaces. Five 
percent (5%) of the open parking spaces must be available for future installation of electric vehicle charging 
stations. Fractional numbers derived from this calculation must be rounded up to the nearest whole number.¶ 
(7) The program only applies to the following occupancy classifications as specified in the Oregon Structural 

Page 1 of 4
65



Specialty Code:¶ 
(a) Group B - Businesses;¶ 
(b) Group M - Mercantile;¶ 
(c) Group R-2 - Residential; and¶ 
(d) Group S-2 - Parking garages.¶ 
(8) Unless otherwise stated in this rule, electrical installations must be according to the Oregon Electrical 
Specialty Code.¶ 
(a) A parking facility must have a conduit system installed from the building electrical service to the open parking 
spaces.¶ 
(A) The conduit system must be, at a minimum, capable of supporting the installation of electrical wiring for the 
future installation of electric vehicle charging stations rated "Level 2" (40 amp/3.3 - 6.6 kW) or larger, as specified 
by the owner.¶ 
(B) Any conduit installed for future electric vehicle charging stations must be labeled "For Future EV Charging 
Stations." Both ends of the conduit must be labeled for the environment it is located in.¶ 
(b) A construction project required to install electric vehicle charging station infrastructure may comply with the 
rule through one of the following options:¶ 
(A) Provide a building electrical service sized for the anticipated load of the electric vehicle charging stations. The 
building electrical service must have the overcurrent devices necessary for the electric vehicle charging stations, 
or have adequate space within the service to add the necessary overcurrent devices;¶ 
(B) Provide adequate space within the building to add a second electrical service for future installation of service 
capacity for electric vehicle charging stations. The building official must allow a second electrical service of the 
same phase and voltage according to Article 230.2 of the Oregon Electrical Specialty Code; or¶ 
(C) Notwithstanding section (8)(a) of this rule, designate a location on the property to install a remote service. 
Potential electric vehicle charging stations served from a remote service location located in or adjacent to a 
landscaping area may not require installation of conduit. The building owner or contractor should coordinate with 
the electric utility serving the property to plan for a future service. Installation of conduits in these areas is at the 
discretion of the building owner or contractor.¶ 
(9) Fees for plan review, permit, and inspection are as established by the municipality under the authority of ORS 
455.020 and 455.210.¶ 
(10) Construction documents associated with the construction of a parking facility must show the location of 
designated parking spaces and any conduits intended for future installation of electric vehicle charging stations.¶ 
(11) For the purposes of this rule persons certified to perform electrical plan review or inspection are not required 
to determine or ensure that the appropriate number parking spaces are designated for future electric vehicle 
charging stations.¶ 
(12) Parking facility requirements do not apply to:¶ 
(a) A temporary parking facility that is reasonably expected to be in service for three years or less.¶ 
(b) The installation of an electrical supply capacity or conduit system to serve parking spaces that are not open 
parking spaces. The areas listed below are not considered open parking spaces. Parking spaces:¶ 
(A) Reserved for motor vehicles that are inventory.¶ 
(B) Reserved for motor vehicles awaiting transport at a port or other transit facility.¶ 
(C) Reserved for use by commercial motor vehicles, emergency vehicles, or commercial or farm motorized 
equipment.¶ 
(D) Reserved for use by motorcycles, mopeds, or all-terrain vehicles.¶ 
[Publications: Publications referenced are available from the agency.] 
Statutory/Other Authority: ORS 455.030, 455.110, 479.730 
Statutes/Other Implemented: ORS 455.030, 455.110, 479.730

Page 2 of 4
66



AMEND: 918-305-0030

NOTICE FILED DATE: 05/12/2022

RULE SUMMARY: Updates references to additional rules that impact the Oregon Electrical Specialty Code for the 

adoption of 918-460-0200 and the repeal of 918-020-0380.

CHANGES TO RULE: 

918-305-0030 
Other Codes or Publications that Impact Electrical Installations ¶ 
 
Other codes and publications that impact electrical installations include, but are not limited to those listed 
below:¶ 
(1) Chapter 9 of the Oregon Structural Specialty Code relating to fire protection systems and Chapter 3 of the 
Oregon Residential Specialty Code relating to smoke alarm installations.¶ 
(2) ORS 455.420 requiring individual electric meters for dwelling units.¶ 
(3) The Oregon Energy Efficiency Specialty Code, and chapter 11 of the Oregon Residential Specialty Code which 
address the energy efficiency issues of motors, electric lighting and other electric equipment; and¶ 
(4) Chapter 16 and 17 of the Oregon Structural Specialty Code which addresses the seismic requirements of 
nonstructural components and special inspection requirements.¶ 
(5) Publications and requirements of the serving utility.¶ 
(6) Public Law 101-336, the Americans with Disabilities Act, Part III; Department of Justice Regulations of Friday, 
July 26, 1991; 28 CFR Part 36, as amended, including the 2010 ADA Standards for Accessible Design and Public 
Law 100-430, the Fair Housing Act and the regulations adopted thereunder.¶ 
(7) Chapter 11 of the Oregon Structural Specialty Code which relates to the Americans with Disabilities Act for 
mounting height requirements for electrical and communication receptacles located in affected buildings and 
structures.¶ 
(8) The interconnection of all net-metering facilities and solar photovoltaic systems operated as interconnected 
power production sources shall comply with the Oregon Electrical Specialty Code. In addition, the interconnection 
of all net-metering facilities utilizing solid-state inverters shall comply with OAR 860-039 Net Metering.¶ 
(9) Oregon Manufactured Dwelling Installation Specialty Code. The electrical installations shall be in accordance 
with the requirements of the Oregon Electrical Specialty Code.¶ 
(10) The electrical portions of the installation or product standards identified in OAR 918-306-0005. These 
standards are informational only and are to be used to clarify code intent. They may be used as installation guides 
when not specifically referenced or covered in the Oregon Electrical Specialty Code. Examples include, but are not 
limited to, the electrical sections of NFPA 20, NFPA 54, NFPA 99, NFPA 101, NFPA 110, NFPA 780 and NFPA 
820.¶ 
(11) Electrical installation requirements for electric vehicle ready parking facilities specified in OAR 918-02460-
038200.¶ 
[Publications: Publications referenced are available from the agency.] 
Statutory/Other Authority: ORS 479.730 
Statutes/Other Implemented: ORS 479.730, 757.262

 

Page 3 of 4
67



ADOPT: 918-460-0200

NOTICE FILED DATE: 05/12/2022

RULE SUMMARY: Implements electric vehicle infrastructure requirements under HB 2180.

CHANGES TO RULE: 

918-460-0200 
Electric Vehicle Charging Station Infrastructure Requirements 
(1) This rule amends the Oregon Structural Specialty Code to require certain buildings to install electric vehicle 
charging infrastructure at a minimum of 20 percent of the vehicle parking spaces in the garage or parking area on 
the building's site, or the minimum percentage required by local government, in accordance with the requirements 
of ORS 455.417.¶ 
(2) This rule only applies to newly constructed buildings and newly constructed garages or parking areas located 
on the site and serving the following building types, excluding townhouses as defined in ORS 197.758:¶ 
(a) Commercial buildings under private ownership;¶ 
(b) Multifamily residential buildings with five or more residential dwelling units; and¶ 
(c) Mixed-use buildings consisting of privately owned commercial space and five or more residential dwelling 
units.¶ 
(3) Coordination with the Oregon Electrical Specialty Code (OESC).¶ 
(a) Unless otherwise specified in this rule, when terms used in this rule have been defined in the OESC, the OESC 
definitions will be used.¶ 
(b) For purposes of this rule a Level 2 charger means Level 2 Electric Vehicle Supply Equipment supplied by not 
less than 40 amps at 208/240 volts, unless otherwise defined in the OESC.¶ 
(c) The use or planned use of energy management systems in compliance with the requirements of the OESC may 
be included when determining the infrastructure requirements of this rule, including the size or planned size of a 
service.¶ 
(d) All electrical installations must comply with the provisions of the OESC.¶ 
(4) The calculation of the minimum number of parking spaces required to have electric vehicle charging 
infrastructure is determined by the following methods:¶ 
(a) No less than 20 percent, rounded up to the nearest whole number, of the spaces in the garage or parking area 
for the building, excluding overflow or seasonal parking; or¶ 
(b) When a local jurisdiction has increased the minimum required percentage of spaces to be provided with 
electric vehicle charging station infrastructure through a land use process in accordance with ORS 455.417(4), the 
number of spaces will be determined by the local process. The calculated number of spaces may not be less than 
the calculated number of spaces under section (4)(a) of this rule.¶ 
(5) Newly constructed buildings identified in section (2) are required to install electric vehicle charging station 
infrastructure consisting of a conduit system described in section (6) and at least one of the following options:¶ 
(a) Provision of building electrical service, sized for the anticipated load of electric vehicle charging stations, that 
has overcurrent devices necessary for electric vehicle charging stations or has adequate space to add overcurrent 
devices;¶ 
(b) A designated space within a building to add electrical service with capacity for electric vehicle charging 
stations; or¶ 
(c) A designated location on building property, in or adjacent to a landscaped area, for installing remote service for 
electric vehicle charging stations.¶ 
(6) A conduit system installed from the building electrical service, or from the dedicated space or location for a 
future electrical service as described in subsection (5)(b) or (5)(c), to parking spaces that can support, at a 
minimum, electrical wiring for the installation of one level 2 charger for each parking space. Both ends of the 
conduit must be labelled to show that the conduit is provided for future electric vehicle supply equipment.¶ 
(7) The installation of a level 2 charger or level 3 DC fast charger at a parking space satisfies the infrastructure 
requirements of this rule for that parking space. 
Statutory/Other Authority: ORS 455.030, ORS 455.417 
Statutes/Other Implemented: ORS 455.417

 

Page 4 of 4
68



69



70



71



72



73



74



75



76



77



78



79



80



81



82



83



84



85



86



87



88



89



90



91



92



93



94



95



96



97



98



MINUTES
City of Newport Planning Commission

Work Session
Newport City Hall Council Chambers

September 26, 2022
6:00 p.m.

Planning Commissioners Present: Jim Patrick, Bob Berman, Braulio Escobar, Jim Hanselman, Bill
Branigan, Gary East, and John Updike.

PC Citizens Advisory Committee Members Present: Annie McGreenery.

PC Citizens Advisory Committee Members Absent: Dustin Capri (excused), and Greg Sutton.

City Staff Present: Community Development Director (CDD), Derrick Tokos; and Executive Assistant,
Sherri Marineau.

1. Call to Order. Chair Patrick called the Planning Commission work session to order at 6:00 p.m.

2. New Business.

A. Discuss Priorities for Updating Special Parking Area Requirements. Tokos reviewed the staff
memorandum with the Commission. He covered the three special area parking requirements for
Chapter 14.14.00 for Nye Beach, Bayfront, and City Center. Tokos then reviewed questions the city
should be asking when doing the updates. Hanselman asked if the parking district maps were accurate.
Tokos confirmed they would make sure they were close.

Patrick questioned if they would be able to require parking spaces under the conditional use rules if
there was commercial with residential on the top floors. He thought they should require off-street
parking for these. Escobar stated that he had difficulty supporting, reducing or eliminating the off
street parking requirements because parking was at a premium in Newport. He gave an example of
the 4-plex that was built by Nana’s restaurant that wasn’t required to have parking. Tokos reminded
that the Nye Neighborhood Association was asked if they observed any problems with parking in the
area and they said there were no issues. Escobar pointed out that the parking at the Inn at Nyc Beach
might be different than Nana’s. Tokos noted the difference between commercial and residential was
that they are often being utilized at different times. Branigan reminded that they were only metering
in the Bayfront first then they would proceed to the other areas. Tokos clarified that what they were
only talking about putting language in to eliminate or reduce off street parking requirements where
metering was implemented.

Hanselman asked if Nye Beach could be a metering section eventually. Tokos explained they were
not moving forwards with metering in Nye Beach, only the Bayfront. Nye Beach would be assessing
how the Bayfront worked and then the city would be talking to Nye Beach to see if the permit program
should be expanded. This would be a metering/permit combo program. Tokos reminded the
Commission that they could frame this how they saw fit. They could say metering only, or metering
as a component. Berman asked what the impact of eliminating parking requirements would have had
on the new grocery store that almost went in on the Bayfront. Tokos reported they would have had to
put in some off-street parking to supplement. Escobar asked if some of the properties on the Bayfront
were sold, such as the Sail Inn or the Coffee House, would the requirement to have off-street parking

Approved Planning Commission Work Session Minutes 9/26/2022.

99



be eliminated. Tokos explained if they eliminated the off-street parking requirement, he could see
properties utilizing their driveway for outdoor seating permanently and those areas wouldn’t go back
to parking. The concept with metering was that they would see a revenue stream that was significant
enough that they could get a vanpool or enhanced transit going, or save up for a period of time to make
a legitimate run at structured parking. Escobar asked if metering would generate more overturned
spaces. Tokos explained it would because it was a proven commodity at that point. Hanselman asked
if this required enforcement and consequences for people move out of the parking space. Tokos
confirmed this was the expectation. The budget included funding for an enforcement officer once the
metering was in place to create a revenue stream to help pay for the officer. There would be people
who occasionally didn’t pay and why there would be enforcement. Hanselman asked what the
residential population of Bay Blvd was. Tokos reported it was almost nonexistent. Hanselman thought
the competition for parking on the Bayfront was different due to the residential demand in Nye Beach.
Branigan reported that he spent time talking to the city of Bend about their parking program and they
told him they have a full time parking manager. There were a lot of parking systems available, and
Bend’s system was paid through an app through a person’s cell phone. A person would key in their
license number when they used their app to park. The enforcement officer would look at the license
plates to determine who was in violation and then issue a parking ticket. They also asked people to
pay voluntarily and most people paid. Escobar asked if this allowed people to use the app to pay for
their parking. Branigan said they could, and noted they had different zones that had time limits. Most
park people are honest, and the revenue stream was enormous from Bend.

Berman had a problem with eliminating off-street parking. He asked if there was a way to put a box
around it specifically to address situations such as the new grocery store to say if they were going to
be developing more than a certain number of square feet they must have a certain number of parking
spaces. Tokos asked if he was saying they should put in language for eliminating parking but also
include a policy alternative to reduce but not eliminate. Berman agreed with this but thought they
could say for all development under a certain parameter of either square feet or dollars. Patrick thought
they should go by what the anticipated traffic was. Updike asked if they were eliminating the
requirement for the parking, not the parking itself, because certain lenders required certain parking
requirements. He reported that his experience in Tucson, which had the same concerns as Newport,
was that eliminating the requirement didn’t create problems when it was implemented along with
permit parking programs. In most cases it was the lenders who would look to see if there was enough
parking spaces to make the project financially feasible. Patrick suggested they be given a couple of
policy options.

Tokos reviewed the question to require ADA parking spaces in the right-of-way or if the city would
address it programmatically. He thought that the best way to deal with it was for the city to add them
programmatically on the Bayfront. Patrick pointed out that the map didn’t pick up the parking on Lee
Street and further up. Tokos reported that the Parking Committee had this on their radar and as they
worked on metering they would have more detailed maps. Berman asked how they did ADA spaces
for parallel parking. Tokos noted this could be done but they would have to do a ramp for them. He
thought the better play for ADA was to address the needs in the public realm where the bulk of the
parking was, and do it programmatically with city funding.

Escobar asked how they anticipated implementing EV charging stations in the areas where parking
meters were. Tokos explained EV charging was getting more efficient and could provide a charge in
a timeframe that somebody could park and enjoy the Bayfront. He noted the State was now requiring
the infrastructure to support EV charging to go in new commercial and multifamily projects with over
five dwelling units. They didn’t have to put the chargers in but they had to size for their power.

2 Approved Planning Commission Work Session Minutes 9/26/2022.

100



Berman asked what “programmatically” meant. Tokos explained this meant taking a look at the off
street parking they’ve seen on the Bayfront and if they wanted to introduce EV charging they did it in
a thoughtful way as a project.

Tokos thought he could pull together some alternative bicycle parking standards as opposed to what
was in the current code. This would cover wall mounted attachments for bikes on the Bayfront as an
alternative to the conventional bike racks. Berman asked if this was limited to the parking districts.
Tokos explained they were putting theses in the special parking areas because the areas had space
constraints. Updike suggested there be another programmatical opportunity for bike lockers that were
off street. Berman suggested the little pump station location for this. Patrick suggested doing a
combination bicycle parking and motorcycle parking where there were small stall spaces. Berman
thought EV charging should have a clause for e-bikes, e-scooters, and motorcycles.

3. Unfinished Business.

A. Discuss Scope of Camping Related Land Use Amendments. Tokos reported they hadn’t touched
the land use rules at this juncture. They would do a land use fix on the heels of the camping ordinance
that was to be adopted by the City Council. The latest version of the amendments were sent to the
Commission before the current meeting. The version changed Subsections B and C to just Subsection
B. Tokos covered the changes to the rules for three vehicles or tents on commercial, industrial, public,
or religious institutions.

Branigan thought they needed to add something to say that at any time the institution could say people
couldn’t camp at their location anymore. Tokos confirmed this was include. Branigan thought they
needed to add that private institutions had an obligation to keep the premises clean, tidy, and sanitary
and to remove the trash. He also thought they needed to give 4 hours for campers to move or some
sort of time limit. Tokos explained the city had the ability to trespass on properties, which went hand
in hand with this.

Patrick thought that if campers didn’t have permission from the land owner to camp they could be
removed from the property. Tokos reported the city adopted a trespass ordinance that codified long
standing city policy, which would be tweaked one or more times to line up with the ordinance. He
would pass the Commission’s thoughts along to the Chief Malloy for the October Council hearing.

Escobar asked if the ordinance would allow camping on the front lawn of City Hall. Tokos reported
it would not and there was a list of the city owned properties people couldn’t camp on. Berman asked
why the Ernest Bloch Wayside wasn’t included. Tokos reported it wasn’t city property and was owned
by ODOT. The ordinance only applied to properties under the city’s jurisdiction. Berman noted that
only the main fire station was listed, but not the other two. He asked if they should be included. Tokos
explained the public didn’t have access to these and they tried to limit it to areas the public could
access.

Berman pointed out there wasn’t any distinction between homeless type camping and recreational
camping. Tokos noted the courts came down on this to say people had the right to rest. Whether or
not they were homeless wasn’t a part of this. Tokos explained they had guidance from the League of
Oregon Cities that helped cities do legislation that wouldn’t tie them up in courts. If the city had a
shelter, they could send the homeless to them and they would have more leeway on moving people.
Escobar asked what happened when people didn’t want to go to shelters. Tokos explained the rules
didn’t require them to like the option of where to move, just that they had an option.

3 Approved Planning Commission Work Session Minutes 9/26/2022.

10
1



Tokos noted that the zoning ordinance changes the Commission would review were for camping on
private property. Hanselman thought that the size limit of tents should be a consideration. Berman
expressed concerns about people putting up a large tent for weddings. Hanselman thought it should
be defined as overnight tents. Escobar asked if this had been a problem. Tokos reported it was and
continued to be an issue. The clearer they could be about it would be better. Berman thought they
should allow one tent on vacant lots. He thought as many doors they had for people to live in, even if
in tents, he would support. Hanselman couldn’t support this unless there were sanitary facilities on the
lot. He felt the hardest thing to deal with was public health. If they allowed tents on lots it wouldn’t
consider the public health needs. Patrick suggested they could allow them if they were adjacent to
facilities. Tokos thought this would work for open lots where the lot next door had a home with
facilities for campers to use. Escobar didn’t think they wanted to adversely impact the traditional use
that families had and make it overly restrictive for when owners wanted to camp out in their backyards
at their homes. Updike thought the Eugene example addressed this. Tokos thought they could change
“family” to a number of individuals.

Tokos reviewed the topic of RVs being occupied on private lots. Currently they weren’t allowed to
occupy RVs on private lots and would have to be in a park. Berman would like to see a mechanism in
place to allow this to help address the housing shortage. Tokos noted that Eugene had an example
where they allowed one vehicle in a driveway. This made sense because they wouldn’t be setting up
next to a home that wasn’t already accustomed to seeing vehicles next door. Escobar didn’t see a need
to change the ordinance. Berman didn’t see any reason they shouldn’t do this to help with the housing
shortage. Patrick wanted to see two policy options so they could see what the public thought. Updike
pointed out that some HOAs had restrictions for parking in driveways because this had been a problem.
Tokos asked if the second policy option to allow RVs should be kept to just one. Berman agreed and
thought it should say they couldn’t charge for the RV to park.

B. Planning Commission Work Program Update. Tokos pointed out that there was a joint meeting
with the City Council in November. This would be the Commission’s work session meeting.

4. Adjourn. The meeting adjourned at 7:08 p.m.

Respectfully submitted,

12&
Sherri Marineau,
Executive Assistant

4 Approved Planning Commission Work Session Minutes 9/26/2022.

102


	Parking Advisory Committee Agenda
	2018-6593 - Staff Memorandum
	2018-6591 - Draft Parking Advisory Comm Mtg Minutes 08-17-2022
	2018-6594 - Draft RFP for Bayfront Parking Management Solutions
	2018-6594 - Sample Parking Permit Fee Structures
	2018-6594 - Priorities for Updating Special Parking Area Requirements (9/26/22 PC Work Session Materials)
	2018-6594 - Minutes from the 9/26/22 Planning Commission Work Session



